
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 19 March 2019 at 7.30 pm

Council Chamber - Civic Centre

1. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions  

2. Declarations of Interest  

To receive Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any 
matters on the agenda.

3. Minutes  (Pages 2 - 4)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 13 February 2019.

4. Matters arising  

5. Written questions from members of the public  

To receive any questions from members of the public in accordance with 
Council Procedure Rule 10.

6. Written questions from Councillors  

To receive any questions from Councillors in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 11.

7. Responses of the Cabinet to Reports of the Scrutiny Committee  

To consider responses (if any) of the Cabinet to reports and 
recommendations from the Committee.

8. Improving the Provision of Bus Services in Harlow - Final Report  
(Pages 5 - 9)

9. Review of Paddling Pools - Interim Report  (Pages 10 - 18)

10. Work Plan  (Page 19)

To review the Committee’s work plan for the current year.

11. References from Other Committees  

12. Matters of Urgent Business  

Such other business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be 
received as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances to be 
specified in the minutes.

Public Document Pack



 

MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 

 
13 February 2019 7.30  - 7.50 pm 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
Committee Members 
Councillor Bob Davis (Chair) 
Councillor Simon Carter 
Councillor Joel Charles 
Councillor Tony Edwards 
Councillor Shona Johnson 
Councillor Frances Mason 
Councillor Edna Stevens 
Councillor Chris Vince 

 
Officers 
Hannah Criddle, Governance Support Officer 
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance and Deputy to the Managing Director 
Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 
Julie Houston, Strategy and Economic Development Management 
Adam Rees, Governance Support Officer 

 
 
50. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors David Carter and 
Maggie Hulcoop. 
 

51. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

52. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 
2018 are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  

 
53. MATTERS ARISING  

 
a) Minute 45 - Review of the Provision of Health Care Services and Adult 

Social Care in the Town 
 
Councillor Edwards noted that the report given by West Essex CCG and 
Essex County Council at the previous meeting was titled “Review of the 
Provision of Health Care Services and Adult Social Care in the Town” but 
there was only an update on health care services. Jane Greer, Head of 

2

Agenda Item 3



Community Wellbeing, confirmed that adult social care was not invited. 
Councillor Bob Davis would provide an update by the next meeting.  
 

b) Minute 46 - Review of Paddling Pools - Scoping Report 
 
Councillor Bob Davis advised that a paddling pool update would be 
provided in March. The update will include plans based on the Staple Tye 
site and a health and safety report. Councillor Charles also requested 
information on consultant procurement at the next meeting.  
 

54. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 
None. 
 

55. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  
 
None. 
 

56. RESPONSES OF THE CABINET TO REPORTS OF THE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  
 
None.  
 

57. REVIEW OF THE IMPACT OF PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT  - UPDATE 
REPORT  
 
Julie Houston, Strategy and Economic Development Manager, presented 
an update report on the review of Permitted Development. The report 
recommended that Article 4 Directions were sought for the main 
employment areas throughout the town. Councillor Mason asked whether 
the Police were involved as part of the multi-agency group. Jane Greer 
confirmed that they were not part of the group but have been included in 
dialogue. Jane Greer would look into the Police being involved further.  
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
A The Committee noted the work undertaken to date and 

approves the ongoing work required as detailed in the attached 
work programme attached as Appendix A to the report. 
 

B The Council becomes a signatory to the joint Local Government 
Association (LGA)/Shelter open letter on Permitted 
Development Rights (PDR) to the Secretary of State for the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) attached as Appendix B to the report. 
 

C The Committee recommended to Cabinet that the Council seeks 
Article 4 Directions for the employment areas of The Pinnacles, 
Templefields (area not already covered by the Templefields 
Enterprise Zone (EZ) site Article 4 Directions) and the Burnt Mill 

3



Industrial area/offices adjacent to Harlow Town Railway Station 
(attached as appendices C, D and E to the report), and then to 
notify the Secretary of State to grant this. 
 

D The Committee receive an update report in the next municipal 
year. 

 
58. WORK PLAN  

 
The Committee received a report summarising its work plan for 2018/19. It 
was agreed that a written update on Permitted Development would be 
provided on the agenda in the next municipal year.  
 

RESOLVED that the work plan be noted. 
 

59. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
None. 
 

60. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

4



REPORT TO: 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 
 

19 MARCH 2019  

TITLE: 
 

IMPROVING THE PROVISION OF BUS SERVICES 
IN HARLOW – FINAL REPORT 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

SIMON FREEMAN - HEAD OF FINANCE AND 
DEPUTY TO THE MANAGING DIRECTOR  
(01279) 446228 
 

CONTRIBUTING OFFICER: 
 

MIKE KELLY, BUS STATION AND CAR PARKS 
SUPERVISOR (01279) 446896 
 

 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 
A The Committee notes the outcomes of the review. 
 
B Recommends to Cabinet that the outcomes of the Local Bus Consultation 

relating to future transport requirements in Harlow and wider areas be referred to 
the Garden Town Board. 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. The Council is not the regulatory authority for the provision of bus services in 

Harlow. That responsibility rests with the Eastern Traffic Commissioner (ETC). 
 

2. Essex County Council (the County Council) is responsible for providing, through 
subsidy, any desirable routes that the private sector does not wish to operate. 
Whilst the Council has no direct control over the provision and quality of bus 
services in Harlow, the Council has the ability to exert influence. 

 
3. The original scoping report for the review was agreed by the Committee and 

subsequent updates regarding progress have been provided at the Special 
meeting in April 2018 (which included full disclosure of the findings from the 
User Surveys), a verbal update at the meeting in February 2018 and an interim 
report at the meeting in October 2018. 

 
4. The agreed aims of the review were to gather information on the level of 

services provided in Harlow and examine the customer/user experience in order 
that the findings can be relayed to both the service operators and service 
regulators to help influence and shape future service provision. 

 
5. Further progress has been made following the presentation of the interim report 

to the Committee’s April and October meetings using the research findings and 
key themes generated by QRS Market Research Ltd surveys to discuss key 
issues with bus service operators and the County Council. 
 

5

Agenda Item 8



ISSUES/PROPOSALS 
 
6. The aim of the review was to gather information on the level of services provided 

in Harlow and examine the customer/user experience in order that the findings 
of the review can be relayed to both service operators (the bus companies) and 
service regulators (ETC and the County Council). 
 

7. The review also looked at the 2017 Buses Act which provides additional powers 
to top tier authorities such as the County Council. The Act has extended the 
range of powers for the transport authority and increased the duties placed on 
operators in regard to the provision of bus services. The most significant powers 
include: 

 
a) Improved and enhanced quality bus partnerships 

 
b) Bus franchising 

 
c) The requirement on operators to produce open data available to the 

public. This would require operators and local authorities to publish 
open data digitally for buses in England (outside London). The aim is to 
make it easier for bus passengers to plan their journeys through access 
to routes and timetables data, fares and tickets data, and real time 
information. 

 
8. The County Council is currently engaged in work to refresh its existing bus 

strategy and is also working closely with other local councils (including the 
Council) to address the impact of proposed development on the road, bus and 
sustainable travel networks. 
 

9. The review has also considered compliance with requirements for accessibility, 
requested by the committee as part of the review, and it was found that all 
Harlow operators are complying with requirements for step free access to 
vehicles, improving accessibility to Harlow bus users. 

 
10. Presentation of information on sustainable transport futures for Harlow is not 

included in this report as publication of the draft Harlow and Gilston Garden 
Town Transport Strategy was approved by Cabinet on 28 February 2019 for a 6 
week period following elections in May 2019. The Harlow and Gilston Garden 
Town Board has approved the Strategy in principle. 

 
11. Bus service operators, the County Council and the Council have developed a 

programme of implementable improvements and recommendations to address 
the key themes highlighted by the survey which are detailed in the table below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



Table 1 – Programme of Implementable Improvements  
 

Theme Action/Recommendation Lead 
organisation 

Viability of late/night 
services 
 

Awaiting outcome of 
consultation  

ECC  - Local Bus 
Consultation 
December 2018 
runs until 22 
March 2019 

Understanding why 
reliability/frequency 
issues arise 
 

Monitoring of services and 
timetable revisions where 
required to ensure routes 
are realistically timed and 
serviced. 

Bus operators – 
implementation 
ongoing 

Bus stop signage 
improvements/updates 
 

Replacement of incorrect 
and damaged signage 

ECC – site 
meetings with 
HDC staff as 
required to assist 
with 2019/20 
programming of 
works 

Links between Visitor 
Information Point at 
Bus Station/bus 
operators and local 
‘shopping’ 
destinations (town 
centre and 
neighbourhood 
centres) 
 

Officer review of Visitor 
Information Point to be 
carried out in 2019 in 
conjunction with Council’s 
Property Manager to 
identify any synergy 
between promotion of 
shopping destinations at 
the bus terminus and 
support of local 
businesses occupying 
HDC premises. 
 
Discover Harlow materials 
to be incorporated into 
terminus. 

Harlow Council 

Joint customer and 
driver engagement 
initiatives 
 

Customer care training Bus operators – 
implemented in 
part 

 
12. It was agreed that the success measure for the review should be the 

improvement in customer/user satisfaction as agreed in the original scoping 
report. The Council records feedback from bus users via a standard form with a 
baseline taken at the start of the review and is basing the measure of success 
as the reduction in negative feedback forms received from the user surveys. 
Over the period of the review a 26.5 per cent reduction in negative feedback has 
been seen in 2018/19 to date as shown below: 

 

7



Table 2 – Customer Satisfaction Levels 
 

 
 
13. An extensive survey was commissioned as part of the review of bus services 

and in keeping with the original intentions and scope of the review. The 
outcomes have been constructive and helpful in determining an action plan as 
set out within this report and setting key themes which it will be important to 
continue to focus on as the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Transportation 
Strategy is developed and implemented.  Officers will continue to implement the 
actions and recommendations set out in the report and it is anticipated that there 
will be further improvements in customer satisfaction and feedback as a result of 
this work. 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Place (Includes Sustainability) 
The review of bus service provision is an important precursor to the development of 
the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town and the management of growth in and around 
Harlow. It will be important to be able to demonstrate that the whole town is well 
served by high quality public transport provision, not just the new developments, and 
also that the new developments have sustainable travel mechanisms built into them 
from the beginning to meet the aspirations and targets set out in the Local Plan. 
Author: Andrew Bramidge, Project Director – Enterprise Zone and Interim 
Head of Planning 
 
Finance (Includes ICT) 
None specific.  
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance and Deputy to the Managing Director 
 
Housing 
None specific.  
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Improvements in customer satisfaction over review period 

Negative feedback received

8



Community Wellbeing (Includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 
None specific.  
Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 
 
Governance (Includes HR) 
Harlow Council is not the statutory authority regarding bus services within the district 
but can refer matters to the appropriate body to try and influence how Harlow can be 
best served by public transport. 
Author: Simon Hill, Head of Governance 
 
 
Appendices 
 
None. 
 
Background Papers 
 
None. 
 
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 
 
ETC- Eastern Traffic Commissioner  
 

9



REPORT TO: 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

DATE: 
 

19 MARCH 2019  

TITLE: 
 

REVIEW OF PADDLING POOLS – INTERIM 
REPORT 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

JANE GREER, HEAD OF COMMUNITY 
WELLBEING (01279) 446406 
 

 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 
The Scrutiny Committee notes the content of the report and approves the brief for 
consultancy support for the consultation exercise on the options on the existing 
paddling pools and Splash Park in Harlow. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. The Scrutiny Committee is currently carrying out a review to explore options on 

the existing five paddling pools and one splash park in Harlow. 
 
2. As part of this work and in preparation for the consultation exercise, an indicative 

design for a splash park has been produced for the current Staple Tye paddling 
pool. This pool was chosen as its condition is typical of other paddling pools and 
also generally suffers with more anti-social behaviour than other areas when the 
pool is open. It must be stressed that these plans have been produced only to 
give an indication of what a splash park might look like, and it should not be 
assumed that the Council will be progressing these plans. 

 
 

ISSUES/PROPOSALS 
 
3. The indicative plan, attached as Appendix 1 to the report shows what a new 

splash park on the existing paddling pool site at Staple Tye might look like. It will 
be possible to increase or decrease the water features contained within the 
splash park, according to the budget available.   

 
4. An updated health and safety report is currently being prepared in relation to the 

existing paddling pools. Although it is not available for this meeting, the report 
will set out the health and safety implications of the existing five paddling pools. 
These will include infrastructure safety requirements, the Council’s responsibility 
in terms of paddling pool supervision and security of those pools. 

 
5. The current indications are that improvements required to exiting paddling pools 

include: 
 
a) Repairs to pool surfaces 

 

10

Agenda Item 9



b) Repairs and or upgrades to perimeter fencing 
 

c) Repairs to plant rooms 
 

d) Upgrades to plant machinery 
 
e) New handrails 
 
f) Construction of changing rooms and toilet facilities 
 
g) Tree planting to provide shade. 

 
6. The importance of community engagements and consultation to inform decision 

making is of upmost importance. Consultancy support will be procured to deliver 
extensive consultation throughout the Harlow community.  A draft brief for this 
commission is attached as Appendix 2 to this report for comment, amendment 
and approval. 

 
7. It is anticipated that the above consultation will commence as soon as possible 

following the selection of a the consultancy support and will be concluded  by 
summer 2019 with recommendations being reported back to the Scrutiny 
Committee, as soon as practically possible in the new municipal year. 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Place (Includes Sustainability) 
None specific although it is likely that a change of use planning application would be 
required for any significant changes that arise from recommendations from the 
review and this will need to be built into any future timeframes. 
Author: Andrew Bramidge, Project Director – Enterprise Zone and Interim 
Head of Planning  
 
Finance (Includes ICT) 
Resources have been earmarked for the paddling pools project following the 
decision taken at the Cabinet meeting on 19 July 2018. The appointment of 
Consultants will be met from these resources. 
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance and Deputy to the Managing Director 
 
Housing 
As outlined in the report.  
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 
 
Community Wellbeing (Includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 
As contained within the report. 
Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 
 
 
 
 

11



Governance (Includes HR) 
The objectives of the review are set out effectively within the attached brief 
document, the consultant’s report will be subject to further scrutiny by members. 
Author: Simon Hill, Head of Governance 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Indicative Plan for Staple Tye  
Appendix 2 – Paddling Pools Community Consultation  
 
Background Papers 
 
None. 
 
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 
 
None.  

 

12



C

H

A

N

G

I

N

G

P

L

A

N

T

D

I

S

.

W

C

W

C

G

r

a

s

s

G

r

a

s

s

G

r

a

s

s

G

r

a

s

s

C

o

n

c

r

e

t

eH

a

r

d

s

t

a

n

d

i
n

g

C

o

n

c

r

e

t

eH

a

r

d

s

t

a

n

d

i
n

g

C

o

n

c

r

e

t

eH

a

r

d

s

t

a

n

d

i
n

g

C

o

n

c

r

e

t

eH

a

r

d

s

t

a

n

d

i
n

g

C

o

n

c

r

e

t

eH

a

r

d

s

t

a

n

d

i
n

g

C

o

n

c

r

e

t

eH

a

r

d

s

t

a

n

d

i
n

g

EXISTING

BASEMENT PLANT

ROOM

www.akdesign.co.uk

DATE

SCALE

DWG. No.                         REV.

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWN BY: DATED

PROJECT

CHARTERED  BUILDING  CONSULTANCY

PROJECT  MANAGERS

BUILDING  DESIGNERS

TEL: 020 8596 7070

BUILDING  SURVEYORS

MARSH WAY

CEME INNOVATION CENTRE

CEME CAMPUS

RM13 8EU

AK  DESIGN  PARTNERSHIP  LLP

E-MAIL: office@akdesign.co.uk

A

K

D

P

A

K

D

P

WEB SITE: www.akdesign.co.uk

RAINHAM

REV APP'DDATE DESCRIPTION BY

CHECKED BY: DATEDKAS 14:11:2018
APPROVAL BY: DATED- 21:01:2019

CLIENT

ISO 9001
REGISTERED FIRM

Q M
S

ISO 14001
REGISTERED FIRM

Q M
S

© This drawing is copyright
Do not scale from this drawing.
AKDP to be informed of any discrepancies.
Contractor to check all  dimensions on site.

Nov 2018
1:100 (A1)

JDC

4496.110

14:11:2018

STAPLE TYE SPLASH PARK

PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT

Council
Harlow

N

Proposed facilities building and plant
room for larger refurbished splash
pool

Remove existing brick built seating,
make good hardstanding under and
replace with 1.5mtr powder coated
steel bench seats

Existing plant room to remain for
refurbished paddling pool

Remove existing brick built seating,
make good hardstanding under and
replace with 1.5mtr powder coated
steel bench seats

Existing railings removed, provide
new 2.4mtr high anti-climb fencing
running on same line as existing

Existing railings removed, provide
new 2.4mtr high anti-climb fencing
running on same line as existing

Existing railings removed, provide
new 2.4mtr high anti-climb fencing
running on same line as existing

PR
EL
IM
IN
AR
Y

P2

P1 KAS14:11:18 INITIAL PRELIMINARY ISSUE JDC

P03

P03

P01
P02

P01 BUCKET TRIO: VOR 0103

P02 RAINBOW #1: VOR 0517

P03 SPRAY CANNON: VOR 0201

P04 WATER WALL #1: VOR 0318

P05 JET STREAM #2: VOR 0325

New trees / hedge cover in
locations shown

P04

P04

P04

P04

P05

P05

P05

P05

P05

P04

P04

P04

P04

P05

Yellow coloured, resin bonded,
non slip surface

Multi-coloured, resin bonded,
non slip surface with bespoke
pattern

New hardstanding concrete
surface surrounding play area
shown in grey

P06

P06 PERISPRAY: VOR 0533

P06

P07 WATER TUNNEL #1: VOR 0304

P07

P07

P07

P07

P07

P07

P07

P07

P08

P08 TOT TWISTER: VOR 7030

P09 AQUALIEN FLOWER #3: VOR 7389

P09

P09

P10

P10 FROG #1: VOR 7200

P11 FROG #2: VOR 7201

P11

P12

P12 FOOT ACTIVATOR: VOR 0606

P13

P12
P12

P12

P12

P12

P12

P12

VORTEX WATER FEATURE LEGEND

P2 KAS22:01:19 INITIAL SPLASH PARK DESIGN PROPOSAL BF

NOTE:

DOTTED LINES SUROUNDING WATER
FEATURES DENOTES EXTENT OF
SPLASH ZONE

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
Scale 1:100

13

adam.rees
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1



1 
 

Appendix 2 
 

Community Consultation – review of Harlow’s paddling pools  
 
Harlow Council is looking to work with a company to carry out a community 
consultation exercise as part of a review of the town’s paddling pools.  
 

1. Background 
 
The Council runs five very popular free-to-use outdoor paddling pools in the six week 
summer holidays. In addition the Council runs a small splash park. In June 2018 the 
council announced plans to gradually replace the paddling pools with new splash 
Parks which will be built on the existing sites. The Council has allocated funding 
towards the plans with further funds to be allocated in the future should it be 
required.  
 
It is proposed that the new Splash Parks would be built in a staged replacement 
programme over the next two years. They will be open to the public for longer than 
the current six week summer holiday period , they will have lower maintenance and 
running costs than the paddling pools and provide a safer alternative to the current 
concrete pools.  
 
The existing paddling pools are much-loved by the community and are considered to 
be part of Harlow’s heritage. Following the Splash Parks announcement there was 
some public opposition to the plans on social media with residents wishing to keep 
the pools as they are. There was also public support for the plans and many ideas 
and suggestions shared with the Council.  
 
A petition opposing the plans, which was signed by 1,549 people, was submitted to 
the Council and considered by Councillors in September 2018. Following a 
debate, there was cross-party agreement to review the options for the paddling pools 
and splash park across the town.  
 
The Council is now carrying out a Scrutiny Committee review to explore options on 
the existing five paddling pools and one Splash Park in Harlow. The objectives of the 
review are: 
 

 To gain an understanding of the operation of the five existing paddling pools 
and one splash park. 

 

 To gain an understanding of any Health and Safety implications. 
 

 To gain an understanding of costs associated with improvements or the 
replacement of the five existing paddling pools and one splash park. 
 

 If appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet and the Council for 
changes and improvements to the existing five paddling pools and one splash 
park to enhance experience for users of the pools and reduce risk. 
 

14



2 
 

 Consider whether all or some pf the existing paddling pools should be 
replaced with a Splash Parks. 

 
2. Purpose and approach of the community consultation and deliverables  

 
As part for the review the Council wants to consult and engage residents. The 
Council is clear that it wants to enhance the pools and not close or reduce the 
service. However, there are lots of issues to consider not just the wants and needs of 
residents. It is important that the council gets the views and ideas of residents of 
what they would like to see so this can be considered as evidence for the review.  
The consultation should include a variety of ways residents to take part and have 
their say and must include consultation with hard-to-reach groups.  
 
Due to the likely nature of the consultation and the wide range of potential 
consultees, the council is particularly interested in using a Citizens assembly type 
approach to all or part of the consultation, to allow for open discussion and 
questioning using random sampling with a representative assembly with a diverse 
membership.  
 
Of particular importance to this commission is engagement and consultation with the 
young people of Harlow with an expectation that a range of young people will have 
an opportunity to give their views.  This includes but is not limited to local schools, 
the college and Harlow Youth Council. 
 
The company’s role will be to: 
 

 Manage the community consultation /citizens assembly exercise on the 
Council’s behalf: propose timescales, methods of consultation and define the 
consultation objectives 

 

 Work with the Council to communicate the consultation  
 

 Manage a range of consultation activities to gather the views of residents  
 

 Report the findings back to the project team and Scrutiny Committee  
 
The company will report to the paddling pool review project team and it is proposed 
that the company will outline its initial thoughts and recommendations for the 
consultation at the Scrutiny Committee’s meeting early in the 2019 municipal year.  
 
Contract value is not expected to exceed £10,000.   

3. Submission of tender proposals 

Prospective consultants are requested to provide a hard copy written fee proposal, 
along with an electronic copy. The fee proposal should incorporate the following: 

 The proposed methodology to achieve the specification requirements which 
are set out above, including a project plan with a timeline and key milestones 
identified. 

15



3 
 

 This should include names of all staff working on the project, their day rates 
and  CVs, qualifications and track record on at least two similar example 
projects. These examples should aim to illustrate both local experience and 
relevant technical expertise.  A lead contact must be identified and bidders 
should state how they would deliver the commission, should the lead contact 
need to change.  

 A fixed fee for the whole commission should be provided. This should be 
broken down into the key stages of the project as required to satisfy the 
required outputs and deliverables. The fee should include all relevant costs 
such as costs of travel, subsistence and any other anticipated costs. There 
will be no separate payments made in addition to the fixed fee stage 
payments.  

 Full details of any aspects of the services that are proposed to be contracted 
out. 

 The bidder must identify any potential conflicts of interest and declare that 
there is no conflict of interest with a third party or other study that would 
compromise the services provided. 

 Contact details (including phone/ email) for two referees from similar 
commissions and provide details as to how these commissions were 
successfully achieved. 

 Written confirmation that the consultant has public indemnity, public liability 
and employers’ liability insurance that meets HDC’s required standards. 

 Contact details (email and phone number) for the main contact at the 
consultancy; 

Please note that HDC may seek proof of financial standing prior to appointment. 

4. Submission & Appointment Timetable  

 Tender out:  XXX 

 Tender submission deadline: XXXX 

 Potential interview dates (if considered necessary by client): likely to be 
between XXX 

 Inception Meeting: likely to be week beginning XXX 

As outlined earlier in this Brief, Harlow Council requires feedback and 
recommendations by no later than XXXX  

5. Budget & Payment Information 

A budget of up to £10,000 is anticipated for the scope of works set out herein. This is 
exclusive of VAT, but shall include all anticipated project-related expenses (as 
defined above). 

Payment will be made to the Consultant on successful completion of the key outputs 
as set out in the project timeline and agreed at the inception meeting. 

 

16



4 
 

6. Client Lead  

The client lead for the contract will be XXXXX. 

The senior officer providing oversight to the commission will be XXXX. 

7. Awards and evaluation of contract 

Submissions will be evaluated in the following way: 

 Cost: 30% 

 Quality of Proposal: 70% 

The evaluation criteria for the bid evaluation has been designed to allow the 
selection of the Bid that represents the Most Economically Advantageous Tender, 
rather than lowest price alone, which will be the bid judged to offer the optimum 
combination of service capability, quality, deliverability and other areas as detailed in 
this document. 

The evaluation criterion is split with 70% associated to ‘quality’ aspects including 
understanding, experience and approach, and 30% associated to ‘cost’ as detailed 
below 

  

17



5 
 

 
 
 

8. Further reading  
 

 Five new free-to-use splash parks to be built around Harlow -  Council press 
release June 2018 - https://www.harlow.gov.uk/pr18-31 

 

 Councillors to review plans for the upgrade of paddling pools – Council press 
release September 2018 - https://www.harlow.gov.uk/pr18-39 
 

 Public petition -  https://www.change.org/p/harlow-council-save-harlow-town-
park-paddling-pool 

 

 Scrutiny Committee Scoping report – December 2018 - 
http://moderngov.harlow.gov.uk/documents/s12668/Review%20of%20Paddlin
g%20Pools%20-%20Scoping%20Report.pdf 

 

 Scrutiny Committee minutes – December 2018 -  
http://moderngov.harlow.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=119&MId=1057&
Ver=4 

 

 

18

https://www.harlow.gov.uk/pr18-31
https://www.harlow.gov.uk/pr18-39
https://www.change.org/p/harlow-council-save-harlow-town-park-paddling-pool
https://www.change.org/p/harlow-council-save-harlow-town-park-paddling-pool
http://moderngov.harlow.gov.uk/documents/s12668/Review%20of%20Paddling%20Pools%20-%20Scoping%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.harlow.gov.uk/documents/s12668/Review%20of%20Paddling%20Pools%20-%20Scoping%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.harlow.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=119&MId=1057&Ver=4
http://moderngov.harlow.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=119&MId=1057&Ver=4


 

Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2018/19 

 

Title Tuesday 24 July 
2018 

 

Tuesday 4 
September 2018 

 

Tuesday 16 
October 2018 

 

Tuesday 4 
December 2018 

 

Wednesday 13 
February 2019 

 

Tuesday 19 
March 2019 

Civic Pride and Education 
 

Final report      

Improving the Provision of Bus 
Services in Harlow 
 

  Interim report   Final report 

Review of Universal Credit in 
Harlow 
 

 Update report     

Review of the Impact of 
Permitted Development 
 

 Scoping report Interim report  Update report  

Review of the Closure of Osler 
House 
 

  Interview with Osler 
House Action Group 

   

Parking in the Town 
 

      

Review of the Provision of 
Health Care Services and 
Adult Social Care in the Town 
 

   Presentations from 
West Essex CCG 
and Essex County 

Council 

  

Review of Policing in the Town 
 

 Scoping report     

Review of Paddling Pools 
 

   Scoping Report  Interim Report 

Transport Links in and out of 
Harlow Delayed pending the 
completion of the preparation 
of the Local Plan including 
transportation evidence and 
input by Essex County Council 
 

      

Review of Educational 
Provision 
 

      

Review of Youth Club 
Provision 

      

 

19

A
genda Item

 10


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	8 Improving the Provision of Bus Services in Harlow - Final Report
	9 Review of Paddling Pools - Interim Report
	Appendix 1 - Indicative Plan for Staple Tye
	Sheets and Views
	.110


	Appendix 2 - Paddling pools community consultation

	10 Work Plan



